
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the January 17, 2024 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 3.a. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3828 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the property located at 2211 Prairie Avenue

 Attachment
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-003 approving a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the
property located at 1800 Gateway Boulevard

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Annexation of 830 Froebel Drive
Annexation of 530 Froebel Drive

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map at the southwest intersection of Walters Road and Afton Road
in the Town of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Hanchett Bartlett Homestead
Zoning Map Amendment - Hanchett Bartlett Homestead

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, February 7, 2024

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - February 7, 2024

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2419924/01-17-2024_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2418506/PC_Report_-_ZMA-2024-01__1801_2211_Prairie_Avenue.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2418394/PC_Report_-_CSM-2024-01__1800_Gateway_Blvd.pdf


 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
MINUTES 

PLAN COMMISSION 
City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, January 17, 2024 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Abarca, Flesch, Jacobsen, Janke, Anderson, and Councilor Day were present. Commissioner 
Elliott arrived at 7:07pm. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the January 3, 2023 Plan Commission meeting 

Commissioner Abarca moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner 
Flesch. Motion prevailed, voice vote (6-0). 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
3.a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-001 approving a Conditional Use Permit to allow 

warehouse and freight movement in a C-3, Community Commercial District, on a 
portion of the property located at 1805 Prairie Avenue 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked if the public comments received were verbal. Ms. 
Christensen said that they were.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden opened the public hearing. 
 
Nate Wahl, representing Wahl’s appliance, stated that they noticed they are not 
utilizing the full square footage of the building, and thought about leasing it out. Mr. 
Wahl said that he does not think they would be able to lease the space for retail, and 
a micro-distributor would better suit the space. He said it would not be any different 
than how they are operating right now, as the new business would utilize the building 
in the same way that they do now.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if the building already has a natural partition on the inside 
and will they be utilizing the existing loading dock. Mr. Wahl said that CCI put together 
a layout, and they will be utilizing the loading dock. Chairperson Ramsden asked if he 
has a tenant in mind. Mr. Wahl said no they do not. Chairperson Ramsden asked how 
much traffic would increase. Mr. Wahl said that some months are busier than others, 
but they did not anticipate an increase in traffic.  
 

2



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Chairperson Ramsden closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve Resolution 2024-001, seconded by 
Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion prevailed, voice vote (7-0).   

 
4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 

Ms. Christensen updated the Plan Commission on actions taken by City Council related to an 
item previously reviewed by Plan Commission.  
 

5. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items.   
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Anderson made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Abarca at 7:11 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (7-0). 
 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

3



 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 7, 2024 

Agenda Items:  3.a. 

File Number:  ZMA-2024-01 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Manny Meris  
 
Owner:  Meris Cleaners Inc. 
 
Address/Location:  2211 Prairie Avenue  
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Manny Meris on behalf of Meris Cleaners Inc. has submitted an 
application for a Zoning Map Amendment from C-1, Office District to C-3, Community 
Commercial District for the property located at 2211 Prairie Avenue in the City of Beloit.   
 

Staff Analysis 

Existing Site Conditions: The property is situated on the northeast corner of Prairie Avenue and 
Cranston Road. The building, formerly a residential space, has been converted into two 
commercial units that are accessible from Prairie Avenue. The property has been zoned as C-1,  
Office District since 1999. The property owner wishes to rezone the land to C-3, Community 
Commercial District with plans to establish a convenience store if the rezoning is approved. The 
current zoning, C-1, Office District does not permit convenience stores. The C-3, Community 
Commercial District is intended to accommodate community-oriented retail sales and service 
uses. This property has a legal non-conforming drive-through window. A Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) must be applied for to reestablish the use after twelve months of disuse.   
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The property to the north of the subject property is zoned 
C-1, Office District with a residential use; to the east is Plum Tree Village, zoned R-3, Low-
Density Multi-Family Residential; to the south and west are CVS Pharmacy, Citgo Gas Station, 
and Batteries Plus, all zoned C-3, Community Commercial.   
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, 
§66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. The Comprehensive Planning 
law requires all cities, towns, and villages that regulate land use through land use ordinances 
(e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. This plan is intended to guide development and 
redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use decisions be 
consistent with the plan.  All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions 
regarding official mapping, local subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be 
consistent with the plan. 

4



 
The C-3 zoning designation is consistent with the Neighborhood Commercial future land use 
designation and does not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies of the comprehensive 
plan.  If rezoned, the applicant intends to establish a convenience store, which is consistent 
with the uses along Prairie Avenue.  Likewise, the three other corners of this intersection are 
zoned C-3.  Also, Cranston Road and Prairie Avenue are principal arterials, and are able to 
accommodate uses allowed in the C-3, Community Commercial District.  Rezoning the property 
will meet Strategic Goal #3 - Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth. Staff 
believes C-3 zoning is appropriate for this parcel.    
 
Public Notices:  On January 24, 2024 and January 31, 2024, notices were published in the Beloit 
Daily News.  Mailed notices were sent out to property owners within 150 feet of the parcel on 
January 29, 2024.  Staff has not received any comments on the application.  
 
Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The existing building on the property has two units.  One is occupied by Dream Nocion, 
a Retail Sales/Services use, and the other is vacant. The existing commercial businesses 
and multi-family residential development surrounding the property are compatible. 
 

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The parcel is currently zoned C-1, Office District. The property to the north of the 
subject property is zoned C-1, Office District; to the east is zoned R-3, Low-Density 
Multi-Family Residential; to the south and west, including on each of the three others 
corners of this intersection, are all zoned C-3, Community Commercial.   

   
3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 

classification.   
The existing zoning classification is C-1, Office District.  While some uses allowed in C-1 
are also allowed in the C-3, Community Commercial District, C-3 allows higher-intensity 
commercial activities. The zoning amendment is appropriate for this property, given its 
location on Prairie Avenue and proximity to other higher intensity commercial uses.   
   

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property.  
The subject property is located at the intersection of Prairie Avenue and Cranston Road 
which is a fully developed area with a mix of commercial and multi-family residential 
uses. Staff supports investment in the Prairie Avenue Commercial Corridor. 

 
 
 
 

5



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map 
Amendment to change the zoning district classification from C-1, Office District to C-3, 
Community District for property located at 2211 Prairie Avenue in the City of Beloit.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Zoning Map, Location Map, Application, Public Notice, Mailing List and 
Ordinance. 
 

6



 7



Location Map 

 
  

8



9



 

 
 

 

10



 

 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
January 29, 2024 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Manny Meris on behalf of Meris Cleaners Inc. is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment to rezone 
2211 Prairie Avenue in the City of Beloit from an Office District to a Community Commercial 
District (C-1 to C-3). The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, February 7, 2024, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
City Council:  Monday, March 18, 2024 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
 
 
 

We are interested in your opinion. * 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and 
submit them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to 
the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. 
You may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

11

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


 

Owner Owner Address 

Gary L. McHone 35 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Juan Martinez Lesvia Martinez 2 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Julia Rogers 21 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Jacobo Beltran-Pena Paula Beltran 29 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Beverly A. Hanson 32 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Heritage Baptist Church 12848 Willowbrook Rd Roscoe, IL 61073-7686 

Mikkell Properties Wisconsin, LLC 
4639 N Village Pkwy Litchfield Park, AZ 85340-
2718 

Phil White Revocable Trust 5 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

RCP Beloit 2158, LLC 
411 Theodore Fremd Ave Ste 206 Rye, NY 10580-
1411 

Charli A. Stewart 25 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Chelsea F. Grabow 10 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Raymer Family Trust Dated May 1, 
2011 42 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Harold Tardola Elizabeth Tardola 22 Plum Tree vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Patricia A. Gladney 30 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Samra Investments, Inc 1985 Pebble Dr Beloit, WI 53511-6721 

Adam L. Langer Kimberly Langer 13 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Kathryn J. Lawver 33 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Mark E. Herwig 23 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Rhonda J. Cecka 14 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

James R. Harley 6 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Meris Cleaners, Inc 917 4th St Beloit, WI 53511-4411 

Gerald L. Murray Shirle Murray 40 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Daniel P. Casperson 3 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Roland P. Rahn 11 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

John Masles 1507 Old Piedmont Rd San Jose, CA 95132-2421 

Janet R. Wagner PO Box 837 Beloit, WI 53512-0837 

Noelle Giese 41 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Sharon V. Scott 4 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Cvs Scp 2009-C32-080, LLC 1 Cvs Dr #5600-01 Woonsocket, RI 02895-6146 
William R. Woodruff Betty L. Woodruff 12 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Gregory E. Johnson 34 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Randall B. Senn Rebecca Senn 1 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

Richard L. Potter Carol R. Potter 26 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 
Marianne Meris Kimberly Govert A. 
Meris 2086 Collingswood Dr Beloit, WI 53511-2312 
Juan F. Martinez Lesvia Martinez 7 Plum Tree Vlg Beloit, WI 53511-2646 

  
 

12



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3828 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 

19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described land is hereby changed from C-1, Office District to C-3, Community Commercial 
District: 
 

LOT 1 & 2 BLOCK 8 GREENFIELD SUBDIVISION, EXCEPT PART OF LOT 1 DEDICATED AS 

CRANSTON ROAD, FURTHER EXCEPTING A TRIANGULAR PARCEL ON THE SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF THE NORTH 37 FEET OF LOT 1, BLOCK 8 GREENFIELD SUBDIVISION. DIMENSIONS 

OF THE TRIANGULAR PARCEL ARE 15 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 37 FEET 

LOT 1, BLOCK 8, 15 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTH 37 FEET OF LOT 1, BLOCK 8, 

AND 21.22 FEET ALONG THE HYPOTENUSE OF THE TRIANGLE, CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN. SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 0.48 ACRES MORE OR LESS. A/K/A 2211 

PRAIRIE AVENUE.  

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2024. 

 
      City Council of the City of Beloit 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Regina Dunkin, Council President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2024 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2024 

01-611100-5231-  

13



 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  February 7, 2024 
Agenda Item:  4.a. 
File Number:  CSM-2024-01 

General Information 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc., on behalf NorthStar Facility Development, LLC     
Owner: NorthStar Facility Development, LLC     
Address/Location:  1800 Gateway Boulevard    
Applicant’s Request: Approval of a two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM)  
 
Staff Analysis 
Background Info: On March 22, 2023, Plan Commission approved a one-lot CSM totaling 55.90 
acres for NorthStar that included the existing facility and a planned expansion area to the west 
located at 1800 Gateway Boulevard.  Additionally, on March 22, 2023, Plan Commission 
recommended approval of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) for the entire 55.90 acres, and 
recommended approval of a rezoning to PUD for the 22.895 expansion area, both of which 
were approved by City Council on April 17, 2023.  The CSM also included a vacated unnamed 
right-of-way along the southeast corner of the property.  The right-of-way was vacated May 1, 
2023, because it was no longer needed to ensure access for future development of the land 
west of NorthStar, since NorthStar had acquired the property. The vacated right-of-way is now 
used as a private driveway. The proposed two-lot CSM essentially splits the combined 55.90-
acre parcel back into two lots.  
 
CSM Details:  Subsequent to the prior land combination on March 22, 2023, it was determined 
that the two original parcels are in different school districts, one in the School District of Beloit, 
and the other in the Turner School District.  The City Assessor’s office has indicated that having 
multiple taxing districts on one parcel, each having jurisdiction over only a portion of the parcel 
is problematic from a taxing standpoint.  The property owner has petitioned the school districts 
to adjust their borders, which would basically transfer the Turner School District portion to the 
School District of Beloit.  Both districts are anticipated to act on this request this month. If the 
Turner School District does not agree to transfer the property, then this CSM will split the lots 
and maintain one school district for each parcel.  Lot 1 of the proposed CSM consists of 33.004 
acres, and Lot 2 consists of 22.895 acres.  Before being combined into one 55.90-acre lot, the 
22.895 acres was part of 1751 Apex Drive and the original NorthStar parcel was 32.08-acres, 
not including the now vacated unnamed right-of-way.  The proposed CSM reestablishes the 
original lot line between Lot 1 and Lot 2 to address the concern about having two school 
districts over the same parcel.  The two parcels will function as one cohesive development site 
for NorthStar.  A PUD amendment is not needed and both parcels will remain zoned PUD. 
 
The proposed CSM still includes the vacated unnamed right-of-way along the southeast corner 
of the property, as well as several easements including an electrical transmission line easement 
to the north, a 30-foot underground electrical easement, a 60-foot water and sanitary 

14



 

easement, a 20-foot watermain easement and a 30-foot construction access easement.  If the 
CSM is approved, a cross-access easement will be needed over Lot 1 to provide access to Lot 2, 
in the event ownership of Lot 1 and Lot 2 differ in the future.   
Additionally, 12.07(14)(d) of the Subdivision Ordinance requires every lot of record to front or 
abut for a distance of at least 40' on a public street. Because the unnamed right-of-way was 
vacated, Lot 2 does not front or abut on a public street. Plan Commission has the authority to 
grant an exception or waiver to the Subdivision Ordinance if it finds that extraordinary 
hardships or practical difficulties may result from strict compliance with these regulations so 
that substantial justice may be done and the public interest secured.  The exception or waiver 
shall not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of the subdivision regulations. 
  
According to Section 12.13 of the Subdivision Ordinance, exceptions or waivers may not be 
granted unless findings are made based upon the evidence presented in each specific case and 
that all of the following conditions are met by the applicant: 

a. The granting of the exception or waiver conditions will not be detrimental to the public 
safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property; 
• Subject to certain conditions of approval, the proposed exception or waiver will not 

be detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other property. 
A cross-access easement over Lot 1 will ensure access to Lot 2, if in the future, 
ownership changes occur.  All other surrounding properties have access to a public 
street, and are not affected by this exception or waiver.  
 

b. The conditions upon which the request is based are unique to the property for which the 
relief is sought and are not applicable generally to other property, except as allowed 
through Planned Unit Development, Cluster Development or Traditional Neighborhood 
Development; 
• Conditions are unique to this property and are not applicable generally to other 

property. Both parcels are part of an approved PUD, and may not be developed in 
any other way without a PUD amendment.  Both parcels are under the same 
ownership and are anticipated to be in the future. If that changes, a cross-access 
easement will ensure access to Lot 2.  The only reason the owner has submitted an 
application to subdivide this recently combined parcel is to accommodate the 
Assessor’s request to avoid the unique circumstance of having two school districts 
over the same property, thus requiring the need for the exception or waiver for the 
proposed Lot 2. 

 
c. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of 

the specific property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as 
distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried 
out, except as allowed through a Planned Unit Development, Cluster Development or 
Traditional Neighborhood Development; 
• Because of the particular surroundings of the property, especially Lot 2 which is 

between two parcels that have frontage on public streets, a particular hardship to 
the owner exists.  Based on the approved PUD, Plan Commission recommended 

15



 

approval of the vacation of the unnamed right-of-way that originally served what is 
now the proposed Lot 2, and City Council approved the vacation.  To avoid the need 
for an exception or waiver, re-dedication of right-of-way through NorthStar’s 
development site would be needed, which is contrary to their approved PUD and 
unnecessary to serve the approved development. 

 
d. The relief sought will not in any manner vary the provisions of the comprehensive plan, 

zoning ordinance, official map, or other ordinances, except that those documents may be 
amended in the manner prescribed by law; 
• The exception does not vary the provisions of the comprehensive plan, official map 

or other ordinances.  For zoning, both proposed parcels are included in an approved 
PUD, and the standards approved as part of the PUD remain and are not varied by 
the exception, or the proposed CSM. 

 
e. The purpose of the variance or exception is not based exclusively on a financial 

consideration. 
• The purpose of the exception is to address the unintended effect of dividing the 

parcel back into two lots.  The CSM is not based on the owner’s wishes, but rather 
the requirement of the Assessor’s office.  It is not based on a financial consideration. 
 

In order to approve the exception or waiver, a three-fourths vote (or 6 votes) of the entire 
membership of the Plan Commission is required.  Granting of the exception or waiver is 
included as a condition of approval of the CSM, which by default, cannot be approved unless 
the exception or waiver is approved as part of the CSM. 
 
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CSM was distributed to the Review Agents and 
they had the following comments:  
 

• Engineering requested the attached water main easement language to be included on 
the final CSM, and noted a date is missing from the preliminary CSM. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval 
of the attached two lot CSM for the property located at 1800 Gateway Boulevard in the City of 
Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM shall include a cross-access easement over Lot 1. 
2. The final CSM shall include watermain easement language requested by the City of 

Beloit Engineering Division and a date. 
3. Approval of the CSM constitutes Plan Commission approval of an exception to 

12.07(14)(d) of the Subdivision Ordinance, which requires every lot of record to front or 
abut for a distance of at least 40' on a public street. 

16



 

4. The final CSM shall not be recorded if school district boundary adjustments are 
approved, and the entire 55.899 acres of the proposed CSM fall within one school 
district. Note that review by both districts is anticipated in February 2024. 

5. If school district boundary adjustments are not approved, and the parcel remains in two 
districts, the final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within 
one year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location and Zoning Map, Proposed CSM, Application, Site Assessment 
Checklist, Exception to the Subdivision Ordinance Request, Engineering Memo with Watermain 
Easement Language, and Resolution. 

17



 

Location and Zoning Map 
  

18



 

19



 

 

 

20



 

21



 

22



 

23



 

24



 

RESOLUTION 2024-003 
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE  

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1800 GATEWAY BOULVARD  
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1800 
Gateway Boulevard, containing 55.899 acres total, is located within the jurisdiction of the City 
of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOT 1 OF CERTIFED SURVEY MAP NO. 42-160 RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 2240282, 
BEING PART OF THE SE ¼ OF THE SW ¼, OF SECTION 21, AND PART OF THE NE ¼ OF THE 
NW ¼, AND PART OF THE NW ¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SECTION 28, ALL SITUATED IN T. 1 N., R. 
13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. CONTAINING 
55.899 ACRES. (A/K/A 1800 GATEWAY BOULVARD) 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
1800 Gateway Boulevard, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The final CSM shall include a cross-access easement over Lot 1. 
2. The final CSM shall include watermain easement language requested by the City of 

Beloit Engineering Division and a date. 
3. Approval of the CSM constitutes Plan Commission approval of an exception to 

12.07(14)(d) of the Subdivision Ordinance, which requires every lot of record to front or 
abut for a distance of at least 40' on a public street. 

4. The final CSM shall not be recorded if school district boundary adjustments are 
approved, and the entire 55.899 acres of the proposed CSM fall within one school 
district. Note that review by both districts is anticipated in February 2024. 

5. If school district boundary adjustments are not approved, and the parcel remains in two 
districts, the final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within 
one year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 
 
Adopted this 7th day of February, 2024. 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 
  _ 
 Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

25



 

ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

26


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2024-137 - Attachment
	2024-138 - Attachment 
	2024-139 - Attachment

